
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
April 5, 2012, Regular Meeting 


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 


(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the March 1, 2012 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 







 2


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re Draft FY 2012-13 Operating and Capital Improvement 


Budget/Water Rate increase (Est. time 20 min.) 
 
B. Discussion/Action Re Approval Of Resolution 12-07 Approving An Amended 


Agreement With Russian River County Sanitation District (RRCSD) to Allow the 
Previous Agreement with RRCSD to Provide for the Toilet Direct Install Program 
and Other Related Water Conservation Programs (Est. time 20 min.) 


 
C. Discussion/Action re Crystal Communications lease (Est. time 5 min.) 
 
D. Discussion/Action re Rio Vista Terrace saddle failures (Est. time 5 min.) 
 
E.  Discussion/Action re District Cell Phone Policy 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
 
VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS (Est. time 


5 min.) 
 
 
VIII. CLOSED SESSION (Est. time: 20 min.) 


 
A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to 


subdivision (b) of Section 54956.9.  Number of cases: 1 
 
B.   Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957 – Public Employee Performance 


Evaluation 
 Title: Legal Counsel 
 
 
 


IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 
 


ADJOURN 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
Regular Meeting  
March 1, 2012 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Victoria Wikle 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Richard Holmer 
 Jim Quigley 
   
Board Members Absent: Gaylord Schaap 
 
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     Mike Gogna, Meyers Nave 
      David Warner, Meyers Nave 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Sukey Robb-Wilder at 6:32 p.m. 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:32 


p.m.) 
 
(None.)  
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:33 p.m.) 
 
Director Wikle moved to approve the Consent Calendar as submitted.  Director Holmer seconded.  
Motion carried 4-0.  The following items were approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the February 2, 2012 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence: (None.) 
 
D. Approval of Resolution 12-05, Approving a Categorical Exemption for the 2013 


Capital Improvement Program 
 


 1







E. Approval of Resolution 12-06, Reconveying an Existing Waterline Easement and 
Accepting a New Waterline Easement, and Authorizing the General Manager to 
Execute and Cause to be Recorded a Quitclaim Deed and Certificate of 
Acceptance 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.) 
 
(None.) 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:34 p.m.) 
 
A. (6:34 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Replacing District copier this fiscal year.  The GM 


provided and overview of this item.  Director Wikle moved to approve a new copier 
purchase.  Director Quigley seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.  


 
B. (6:38 p.m.) Discussion/Action re FY 2012-13 Operating and Capital Improvement 


Budget/Water Rate Increase.  The GM gave a PowerPoint presentation.  Board 
questions and discussion ensued.  No action was taken.  


C. (7:37 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Crystal Communications lease.  The GM provided 
an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  No action was taken.  


D. (7:40 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Status of Sonoma County Water Agency Permit.  
The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  No action was 
taken.  


E. (7:50 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Rio Vista Terrace saddle failures.  The GM provided 
a short overview of this item, and deferred further discussion until Closed Session.  


F. (7:52 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Claim 2012, Melvin Jones, 14980 Melody Avenue, 
Guerneville (replacement of toilet valves).  The GM provided an overview of this item.  
Board discussion ensued.  Director Quigley moved to reject Claim 2012-02, Claimant 
Melvin Jones.  Director Holmer seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.  


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8 p.m.) 
 
The GM reported on the following items: 
1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water Production and Sales 
3. Leaks 
4. The rainy season is here? 
5. Toilet Rebate Program 
6. In-House Construction Projects 
7. Upcoming Events 
8. Gantt Chart 
 
Board questions and brief discussion ensued. 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS  
(8:07 p.m.) 


 
Director Robb-Wilder commented re Form 700s. 
 


 2







 3


 
VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:09 p.m.) 


 
At 8:09 p.m. President Robb-Wilder announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  At 
8:11 p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  At 8:26 p.m. the meeting reconvened and the 
following actions on Closed Session items were announced: 
 


A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Significant exposure to litigation 
pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 54956.9.  Number of cases: 1 


  Direction was given to staff. 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:55 p.m.) 
 
1. Draft budget 
2. Rio Vista Terrace saddle failures (Closed Session) 
3. Crystal Communications lease 
 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:27 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
APPROVED:  
 
Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Jim Quigley:  ______________ _ ______  
Richard Holmer        





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:32 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:33 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:34 p.m.)

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

		(8:07 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:09 p.m.)

		A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 54956.9.  Number of cases: 1





		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:55 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: April 5, 2012  
 
SUBJECT:  FY 2012-2013 DRAFT BUDGET 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a report on the Draft District FY 2012-2013 
Budget, including the draft Budget Report, and provide direction to staff and the ad 
hoc Budget Committee.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The draft FY 2012-2013 (FY 13) Budget was presented at the March meeting.  At the 
meeting we discussed long-term budget issues and the line item details of the 
proposed FY 13 Budget.  During the discussion several items were highlighted, 
among them was the projection of water sales revenues.  I suggested we were using 
the wrong starting point and that starting with the projected FY 12 water sales 
revenue would be most appropriate.  The Ad Hoc Budget Committee has met twice 
since the last meeting.  Items discussed included: 
 


• A 3% water rates increase reflecting a 1.5% increase in water sales revenue is 
appropriate for the FY 13 Budget.   
 


• The Committee agreed that the appropriate starting point for estimating 
revenues for FY 13 is the projected revenue from the revised FY 12 Budget.  
This decreases expected revenue from water sales by approximately $45,000 
(out of approximately $1.8 million) and this decrease is carried throughout the 
budget document.   


 
• The 2013 CIP should be included in the proposed budget but the approved CIP 


beyond this needs to be reviewed prior to the fall of 2013.  We intend to have 
a staff review, followed by an Ad Hoc Budget Committee review prior to 
bringing it to the Board.  Funding from Redevelopment is still uncertain – the 
Successor Agency Oversight Board approved continuation of the funding but it 
still needs to survive review by the State Department of Finance.  Thank you 
Oversight Board and CDC Staff! 


 
• The Capital Debt Reduction Charge future needs to be discussed – future raises 


and to what degree – but that discussion is not needed for this budget cycle.   
 


• The State loans will be retired in 10 years – this is $170,000 per year available 
for capital projects or other uses.   







FY 2012-2013 DRAFT BUDGET   2 
April 5, 2012 
 


 


 
• Continual monitoring of budget will provide useful information for future 


actions.  Uncertainties abound – in particular, how much and how long will 
sales decrease?  Also important is recognizing that the budgeting process has 
inherent inaccuracies – we never hit the budgeted amounts exactly and there 
is typically some amount of carryover.  We budget conservatively.   


 
 
Exhibit A is the draft FY 13 Budget Report.  It includes a summary of the budget 
detail, the revenues and expense pie charts and discussion of notable budget items.    
This document plus information on the proposed 3% water rates increase will be on 
the District website.   


 
  


Table 1.  FY 2012-2013 Budget Preparation  
Review Capital Improvement Program  December 1, 2011 


Budget Committee meetings February/March 
2012 


Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action, 
Including Direction on Water Rates 


March 1, 2012 


Prop 218 Mailing for Water Rate Increase, if 
necessary 


March 19, 2012 


Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action April 5, 2012 


Approve Budget 
 


May 3, 2012 


 







 


  
Exhibit A. 


 
Sweetwater Springs 


Water District 
Draft 


Annual Operating & Capital 
Improvement Budget 


 
2012-13 Fiscal Year 


(For the period July 1, 2012 - June 30, 2013) 


 
Board of Directors 


 
Sukey Robb-Wilder, President 


Jim Quigley, Vice President 
Richard Holmer, Financial Coordinator 


Gaylord Schaap  
Victoria Wikle 


 
General Manager 


Steve Mack 
 







Exhibit A.  Draft FY 2012-13 Budget Report  2  
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


 2


Sweetwater Springs Water District 
Annual Operating & Capital Improvement Budget 


2012-13 Fiscal Year 
Draft 


Summary 
 


Table 1 is a summary of the Fiscal Year 2012-2013 (FY13) Budget which is described 
and shown in detail in the following pages.  The FY13 Budget is similar in form and 
content to last year’s budget.  The FY 13 Budget includes the second year of 3% 
increases for the Base Rate and Water Usage Charges and inclusion of revenue from 
the Sonoma County Community Redevelopment Agency (CRDA)/Russian River 
Redevelopment Oversight Committee (RRROC) for the FY 2013 CIP capital projects.     
 
Table 1.  Draft FY 2012-2013 Budget, Sweetwater Springs Water District
OPERATING BUDGET


March 1, 2012
FY 10-11


FINAL (CASH)  
11-12


BUDGET
11-12


REVISED
FY 11-12
Projected  


 FY 12-13
BUDGET 


Difference 
FY13-Rev 


FY12 
Budgets 


REVENUE
OPERATING REVENUE


4031.1. · Capital Debt Reduction 235,548 216,000  216,000  235,500  230,000         14,000         
4031.1. · Water Sales 1,763,527 1,814,250 1,814,250 1,770,000 1,796,550      (17,700)        


Total OPERATING REVENUE 1,999,075 2,030,250 2,030,250 2,005,500 2,026,550 (3,700)          
Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 136,012 121,700 121,700 140,500 133,000 11,300         


Total Income 2,135,087 2,151,950 2,151,950 2,146,000 2,159,550 7,600           


EXPENSES
OPERATING EXPENSES


787,273 835,323 835,323 809,000 855,700 20,377         
492,359 523,200 280,200 277,500 295,451 15,251         


Total SALARY & BENEFITS 1,279,632 1,358,523 1,115,523 1,086,500 1,151,151 35,628         


Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 461,477 490,390 509,390 503,354 485,930 (23,460)        


Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,741,109 1,848,913 1,624,913 1,589,854 1,637,081 12,168         


OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $393,978 $303,037 $527,037 $556,146 $522,469 (4,568)$        


Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 4,887 3,500 3,500 3,700 20,000 16,500         


Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 507,000 296,000 496,000 515,500 490,000 (6,000)          
SURPLUS/DEFICIT -117,909 3,537 27,537 36,946 12,469 (15,068)        


CAPITAL BUDGET
REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS


Total Assessments 803,150 777,000 777,000 745,500 777,000 -                   
Interest 23,045 25,000           25,000           25,000           25,000           -                   
Total Grants and Reimbursements 1,584,132 1,263,703 1,451,553 1,451,553 914,250 (537,303)      
Total Transfers from Operations 492,000 281,000 481,000 500,500 475,000 (6,000)          
TOTAL REVENUE 3,452,576 2,346,703 2,734,553 2,722,553 2,191,250 (543,303)      


EXPENSES
TOTAL DEBT PAYMENTS 1,088,390 1,091,314 1,091,314 1,091,314 1,091,314 -                   
Total Capital Expenses 2,292,839           2,527,532      2,540,966      1,321,966      2,836,000      295,034       
TOTAL EXPENSES 3,381,229 3,618,846 3,632,280 2,413,280 3,927,314 295,034       
SURPLUS/DEFICIT 71,347 -1,272,143 -897,727 309,273 -1,736,064 (838,337)      


DISTRICT  RESERVES AND FUND AND LOAN BALANCES 
   Total District Polic


 


y 1,085,081           1,185,057      1,185,057      1,185,057      1,132,099      (52,958)        


TOTAL Reserves EOY 4,791,350           2,345,888      3,566,983      4,808,392      3,018,140      (548,843)      
   Reserves Above (below) Policy 3,706,269           1,160,831      2,381,926      3,623,335      1,886,042      (495,885)      


Total Benefits
Total Salary


 







Exhibit A.  Draft FY 2012-13 Budget Report  3  
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


 3


Summary of FY12 Revenues and Expenses.  Figures 1 and 2 respectively 
show District FY 13 sources of funds and expenses.  Note that sources of funds are 
enhanced by approximately $900,000 from the CRDA/RRROC Grant.  Approximately 
3% of the sources of funds is from District Reserves for capital improvements.   


Figure 1.  FY 2013 Sources of Funds
Total = $3.9 Million Revenues + $180,000 Reserves


Water Sales
45%


Interest
1%CDRC


6%


Assessments
19%


RDA Grants
23%


Rent, Other
2%


Reserves
4%


 
Figure 2. FY 2013 Expenses


Total = $4.0 Million
(does not include FY14 CIP construction)


Capital Improvements
32%


Salary and Benefits
28%


Debt Repayment
27%


Services and Supplies
13%


 







Exhibit A.  Draft FY 2012-13 Budget Report  4  
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


 
 


2012-13 Fiscal Year (FY13) Budget 
 
The annual budget of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) allows the 
District to accomplish its mission which is to provide its customers with quality 
water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective manner and to 
manage District resources for the benefit of the community and environment. The 
District achieves its mission of producing good quality water by pumping Russian River 
underflow from five wells – 3 located at the Guerneville El Bonita well site and 2 located 
at the Monte Rio well site.  That water is then treated in two separate treatment facilities 
at the Highlands site for Guerneville and at the Monte Rio well site and distributed 
through approximately 85 miles of distribution pipes and stored in 26 tanks and 
reservoirs.   This system is managed and its operation administered by the District staff 
of 10 full time employees.  The District has an aggressive capital improvement program 
aimed at maintaining and improving the capital infrastructure to deliver high quality 
water, reduce system water losses, and maintain adequate system pressure and 
fireflow.  The annual budget identifies the revenues and expenses that accomplish these 
tasks. 
 
The FY 13 Budget follows the format established in prior years and includes the 
second year of a 3% increase to the Base Rate and Water Usage Charges.  There 
is no change to the Capital Debt Reduction Charge. 
 
3% increase to the Base Rate and Water Usage Charges:   Most of the revenues for 
the FY13 Budget come from water rates paid in bimonthly bills by District customers 
(Figure 1).  Last year District staff did a comprehensive multi-year analysis to show that 
with small annual increases in rates, the District can develop sustainable funding for 
needed capital projects to maintain District facilities once the current catch up capital 
improvement program is completed.  The financial analysis showed that annual 3% 
increases will build into $500,000 available annually for capital projects.   This is the 
second year of proposed annual 3% rate increases designed to achieve the sustainable 
capital improvement program.    More information on the District’s water rates and a 
water rate calculator can be found on the District’s website at 
www.sweetwatersprings.com. 
 
FY 2013 CIP and FY 2014 CIP (Table 2):  The FY13 Capital Budget includes 2013 CIP, 
which is replacement of approximately 1760 feet (ft) of main line, 22 services, on Starrett 
Hill Road in Monte Rio; replacement of approximately 1440 ft of main line, 24 services, 
in Lovers Lane in Guernewood Park; replacement of approximately 1,375 ft of main line, 
17 services, on Middle Terrace in Monte Rio; and elimination of dead end mains and 
creation of loops by installing 1,950 ft of new main and appurtenances in Canyon Seven 
Rd between Sequoia Rd and Paradise Lane in Rio Nido, estimated to cost 
approximately $1.3 million.  The 2013 CIP is being supported by approximately 
$914,000 from the RRROC/CRDA.     
 
The FY13 Budget also includes the obligation for funding the FY 2014 CIP, which is 
replacement of 3,900 ft of existing main and appurtenances on Hidden Valley Road and 
replacement of 5,800 ft of existing main and appurtenances commencing at the Handy 
Andy Booster and proceeding westerly to the Highway 116 intersection, estimated to 


 4 



http://www.sweetwatersprings.com/





Exhibit A.  Draft FY 2012-13 Budget Report  5  
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


cost approximately $1.6 million.  This expense is included in the FY13 Budget because it 
would be obligated in May or June of the fiscal year.  However, most of the expense will 
occur in FY14.  Because of the end of Redevelopment and any prospect of continuing 
support for the approved 2012-2018 CIP and the lack of funding to complete the entire 
CIP, the FY14 CIP will be reviewed prior to the fall of 2013.  For budgeting purposes, the 
current projects proposed for FY14 are included in the FY13 Budget.   
 
District Reserve Policy:   A formal District Reserve Policy was approved in September 
2009.   The Reserve Policy allows the District to gauge its financial health and 
adequately plan for its future and allows ratepayers to follow this planning.  The District 
Reserve Policy has the following components: 


 
• Budget Reserve – a reserve based on 10% of the Operating Budget expenses 


for emergencies, such as a natural disaster. 
• Economic Reserve – 15% of the Operating Budget expenses for economic 


downturn or other economic crisis. 
• Debt Repayment Reserve - 25% of all payments for principal and interest on all 


District loans to ensure funding is available to repay existing District debt. 
• Capital Reserve – 25% of the nominal Capital Budget of $1 million for similar 


issues with the capital program. 
 


The sum of all district funds is shown in the budget as Total Reserves End of Year 
(EOY).  This is the sum of the District discretionary funds, listed in the budget, minus 
$200,000 cash balance for operating purposes, at the end of the year.  The difference 
between Total Reserves EOY and Total District Policy Reserves is Reserves Above 
District Policy.  The District goal is to keep this number positive.  The amount above the 
District Policy Reserve is the amount the District has for future capital projects.  The 
Reserves Above District Policy is a good measure of where we are in funding an 
ongoing capital program. 


 
Other Financial Assumptions/Highlights of the FY12 Budget include: 
 


• Less water will be sold in FY13 – our assumption is that a 3% rate increase will 
result in a 1.5% revenue increase in water sales.  


• Salaries are increased to match the approved Memorandum of Understanding 
and contracts for nonrepresented employees.  


• The transfer to CIRF to be $220,000 in FY 13. 
• The RRROC/CDC grant of $914,000 is included for support of the FY13 CIP 


described above.  Because of the end of Redevelopment, there is some 
uncertainty whether this grant will be continued (there are two review stages; one 
by a local Oversight Committee and one by the State Department of Finance).  If 
the grant is voided by either of these review processes, the FY 13 CIP will be 
fully funded by District Reserves.     


 
Line Item Highlights of the FY12 Budget: 
 
The FY13 Operating Budget provides for ongoing costs consistent with previous 
years’ expenditures, except where identified below. 
 


 5 







Exhibit A.  Draft FY 2012-13 Budget Report  6  
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


The operating budget encompasses the “expenditures related to the operation, 
maintenance and repair of water facilities”, as well as the billing, collections, accounting, 
fiscal management and other overall administration. 
 
Water Bill Revenue line items have been adjusted to reflect the 3% increases in the 
Base Rate and Water Usage Charges and slightly reduced water sales.  Capital Debt 
Reduction Charge (CDRC) revenue has been adjusted to reflect the actual revenue 
produced in FY12 as there is no change in the charge.  Operating interest is continued 
at a relatively low amount to reflect continuing lower interest on deposited funds. 
 
Under Expenses, Wages are up approximately $21,000 to reflect the salaries and 
benefits from the Memorandum of Understanding with represented District Employees 
and contracts with nonrepresented employees.   Benefits are budgeted to increase 
approximately $15,000. Wages and Benefits are a major District expense – 
approximately 70% of the FY13 Operating Budget expenses. 
 
Total Supplies and Services are approximately $23,000 lower than the FY12 approved 
budget.  There are small increases in several line items to reflect higher costs, but 
savings in others.   Maintenance/Repair – Facilities is a big cost item in Supplies and 
Services and has been increased to reflect the projected costs in FY12 which will likely 
be similar for FY13.   Governmental Fees have been increased to reflect higher fees 
being charged by all levels of government.  Professional Services continues to 
decrease to reflect staff’s ability to keep consultants’ costs down.   Electric is a big 
expense item and is expected to be $13,000 less in FY13.    
 
Fixed Asset Expenditures has been increased to account for the purchase of a 
replacement chlorination system for the Monte Rio Treatment Plant. 
 
The Operating Budget has a surplus of approximately $567,000 which is transferred as 
revenue to the Capital Improvement Budget as Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 
(CIRF), Building Fund, In-House Construction Fund, and CDRC revenue.   
 
The FY13 Capital Budget major expenses are the FY 2013 CIP (estimated cost $1.3 
million) and FY 2014 CIP (estimated cost $1.6 million), described above and in 
Table 2. 
 
Capital Interest revenue is estimated conservatively to reflect expected continuing low 
interest rates this coming year. 
 
Capital Debt is a major expense item – approximately $1.1 million and 27% of total 
District annual expenses.  District Capital Debt includes: 
 


• General Obligation Bonds – $12 million in bonds that were approved to purchase 
the District and make needed capital improvements.  Paid off in 2032.  Annual 
payment - $684,000. 


• State Loans - two loans for approximately $3 million which were approved in 
1995-6 for needed improvements.  Paid off in 2021-2.  Annual payment - 
$170,168.50. 


• Private Placement Loan.  $3 million loan acquired in 2008 for needed capital 
improvements.  Paid off in 2028.  Annual payment - $234,012. 


 6 







Exhibit A.  Draft FY 2012-13 Budget Report  7  
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


 
FY 2013 has funding assistance from the RDA/RRROC grant (Table 2). 
 
The Private Placement Loan of $3 million acquired in September 2008 has been 
completed expended funding District capital projects (CIP IV-A and CIP IV-B).   
 
District Reserves and Funds and Loan Balances show the District’s continuing 
healthy financial picture.   
 
As discussed above reserve balances are a good measure of the health of the District’s 
finances.  For FY13, District Policy Reserves are at $1,132,099 and Reserves Above 
District Policy at the end of the year are $1,886,042.    
  


 7 







Exhibit A.  Draft FY 2012-13 Budget Report  8  
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


 8 


 
 


Table 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District 2013-2014 Capital Improvement Program (CIP)  


Year Projects 
Estimated 


Cost 
2013    


  
Starrett Hill Road (MR) Replace approximately 1760 ft of main line, 22 
services. $380,000 


  
Lovers Lane (GV) Replace approximately 1440 ft of main line, 24 
services. $300,000 


  
Middle Terrace (MR) Replace approximately 1,375 ft of main line, 17 
services. $290,000 


  


Canyon Seven Rd (GV) – Eliminate dead end mains and create loops by 
installing 1,950 lf of new main and appurtenances in Canyon Seven Rd 
between Sequoia Rd and Paradise Ln.   $329,000 


 2013 Total $1,299,000 
 75% FY 2013 CIP CRDA Grant $974,250


2014  


 
Hidden Valley Rd (GV) – Replace 3,900 lf of existing main and 
appurtenances on Hidden Valley Rd. $656,000


 


Old Monte Rio Road (GV) – Replace 5,800 lf of existing main and 
appurtenances commencing at the Handy Andy Booster and proceeding 
westerly.  $936,000 


 2014 Total $1,592,000


 2013-2014 Totals $2,891,000
 





		Item V-A - FY 2012-2013 Draft Budget

		Meeting Date: April 5, 2012 



		Item V-A.1 Budget Report-FY 2012-13DRAFT

		Board of Directors

		Richard Holmer, Financial Coordinator

		General Manager



		Steve Mack

		Sweetwater Springs Water District










SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : April 5, 2012  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 12-07 
APPROVING AN AMENDED AGREEMENT WITH THE RUSSIAN RIVER COUNTY 
SANITATION DISTRICT (RRCSD) TO PROVIDE FOR THE TOILET DIRECT INSTALL 
PROGRAM AND OTHER RELATED WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAMS   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution 12-07 which authorizes the General 
Manager to execute an amended agreement with the Russian River County Sanitation 
District (RRCSD) in which RRCSD will provide administration for certain water 
conservation programs, including a direct-install toilet program. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  No impact, the amount of funding agreed to by RRCSD is essentially 
unchanged.   


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
In November 2010, the District entered into an agreement with the RRCSD in which the 
District joined the California Urban Water Conservation Coalition (CUWCC) in return for 
RRSCD paying for the District’s participation costs for 10 years, provide $10,000 per 
year for conservation rebates, and provide Sonoma County Water Agency (SCWA, 
SCWA is the parent agency for RRCSD; RRCSD staff are essentially SCWA staff) staff 
assistance in participating in the MOU for 10 years, and in preparation of the water 
conservation elements of the 2010, 2015, and 2020 Urban Water Management Plans 
(UWMP) required by the California Department of Water Resources.   RRCSD needed 
the District to participate in the CUWCC as a requirement to be eligible for a low interest 
loan from the State.    
 
The District and RRCSD/SCWA have had this agreement in effect since November 2010.  
We have joined CUWCC and SCWA has provided one annual $10,000 payment and paid 
the District’s annual dues for CUWCC.  SCWA staff also provided technical support and 
editorial assistance in completing the 2010 Urban Water Management Plan.     
 
Since the agreement inception there has been interest in participating in water 
conservation programs administered by SCWA, in particular the direct install toilet 
program. Approximately 23 toilet rebates have been approved during this period. 
During discussions with SCWA staff on how to make the direct install program available 
to District customers who are not customers of RRCSD (RRCSD customers already have 
this program available to them) we determined it would be better if SCWA retained 
administration of the direct install program.  Because the handling of the funds would 
be different, a revised agreement is necessary.   
 







APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 12-07  2  
April 5, 2012                                                                 


 


The major change of this agreement is that SCWA retains the funds earmarked for 
funding District water conservation programs which are $10,000 per year.  After the 
agreement time period is completed, funds remaining will be transferred to the District.  
We discussed the possibility of extending the agreement at that point if we wish to 
continue our relationship – that is a discussion for another day in the future.   The 
agreement allows for the flexibility for District participation in other water conservation 
programs administered by SCWA.   
 
 







Resolution No. 12-07 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT APPROVING RESOLUTION 12-07 WHICH 


AUTHORIZES THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH 
RUSSIAN RIVER COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT WHICH AMENDS A 


PREVIOUS AGREEMENT AND ALLOWS THE DISTRICT TO PROVIDE A WIDER 
RANGE OF WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAMS INCLUDING  A DIRECT 


INSTALL TOILET PROGRAM. 
 


WHEREAS, in November 2010 Sweetwater Springs Water District 
(District) approved an agreement with the  Russian River County Sanitation 
District (RRCSD) in which the District agreed to join the California Urban 
Water Conservation Coalition (CUWCC)  in return for receiving assistance 
with the District’s water conservation program; and 
 


WHEREAS, the experience of the District since the beginning of the 
program has shown that a wider range of conservation programs, as 
administered by the Sonoma County Water Agency (SCWA) under contract 
with RRCSD, would provide better service to District customers; and 
 


WHEREAS, SCWA is in agreement with providing that administration, 
including administration of a direct-install toilet program for customers not 
provided sewer service by the RRCSD; and 
 


WHEREAS, the amended agreement attached as Exhibit 1 provides 
for the changes in the water conservation program and relationship between 
the District, RRCSD and SCWA.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of 
the Sweetwater Springs Water District authorizes the General Manager to 
execute the agreement with RRCSD substantially in the form attached hereto 
as Exhibit 1. 
 
  I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct 
copy of a Resolution duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of 
Directors of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, 
California, at a meeting held on April 5, 2012, by the following vote. 
 







Resolution No. 12-07        2 
April 5, 2012 


 
Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Jim Quigley        
Rich Holmer        
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           
      Sukey Robb-Wilder 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 
 
 
1832313.1 







 


 
First Amended Agreement for Funding of Sweetwater Springs Water District Water Conservation Program 1 


jch:\\fileserver\data\techw\joan\1011-034a lee brian - sweetwater springs\sswd amended 03202012_sswd.docx      version: 3/20/2012 2:32:00 PM 


TW 10/11-034A 
 


“Working Today for Water Tomorrow” 
The Sonoma County Water Agency’s Integrated Management Policy for ISO 9001 and 14001 states that we are committing to always 
improving, achieving customer satisfaction, total regulatory compliance, environmental stewardship, and resource management. 


 


Exhibit 1.   First Amended Agreement for Funding of 


Sweetwater Springs Water District Water Conservation Program 


 


This Agreement is between the Russian River County Sanitation District, a body corporate and politic 
of the State of California (hereinafter “District”), and Sweetwater Springs Water District (hereinafter 
“SSWD”).  The Effective Date of this Agreement, as amended by this First Amendment, is November 2, 
2010. 


RECITALS 


A. District has received a regulatory order to make costly improvements to the Guerneville 
Wastewater Treatment Plant and has applied for a low cost loan from the State Revolving Loan 
Fund (SRF). 


B. State Water Resources Control Board, which administers the SRF, requires that SSWD have an 
approved water conservation program as a condition of approval for the loan application 
submitted by District. 


C. State Water Resources Control Board indicates that approval of the California Urban Water 
Conservation Council (CUWCC) Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) by SSWD would fulfill 
the requirement for a water conservation program. 


D. Approval of the loan from the State Water Resources Control Board will reduce financing costs for 
the District for installation of a new wastewater disinfection system. 


E. SSWD is willing to approve the CUWCC MOU in order to enable the District to obtain low cost 
financing from the State Water Resources Control Board. 


F. Sonoma County Water Agency operates the District under contract.  References to “District” 
employees are understood to be Sonoma County Water Agency employees acting on behalf of the 
District. 


G. Sonoma County Water Agency has personnel experienced with working with the CUWCC MOU 
and can provide assistance to SSWD in compliance with the MOU and the conservation-related 
aspects of the 2010, 2015, and 2020 Urban Water Management Plans. 


H. District is willing to reimburse certain of SSWD’s costs of complying with the CUWCC MOU in 
order to make participation in the MOU have no effect on SSWD water rates, while achieving cost 
savings for District. 


I. District and SSWD first entered into this Agreement on November 2, 2010.  
J. SSWD applied to join CUWCC MOU on October 7, 2010 (per SSWD Resolution 10-19) and was 


accepted by CUWCC in December 2010 in accordance with the requirements of the original 
Agreement, dated November 2, 2010. 







 


 
First Amended Agreement for Funding of Sweetwater Springs Water District Water Conservation Program 2 


K. As part of the original Agreement, District was to provide SSWD $10,000 per year for five years 
commencing on November 2, 2010 to fund SSWD’s water conservation program. A water 
conservation program is a requirement of the CUWCC MOU. 


L. SSWD has determined that it does not have sufficient resources to expand its water conservation 
program approved June 4, 2009 by SSWD Resolution 09-14 and has asked District to administer 
elements of the SSWD program as needed. 


M. District and SSWD do mutually agree that having District administer elements of SSWD’s water 
conservation program would be in the best interests of both parties and that no additional costs will 
be incurred by District or SSWD in doing so. 


N. The First Amended Agreement revises each party’s responsibilities to reflect these changes. 
O. This First Amended Agreement supersedes all previous agreements between SSWD and the 


District.  
 


AGREEMENT 


SSWD and District agree as follows: 


1. RECITALS 


A. The above recitals are true and correct. 


2. COORDINATION 


A. SSWD shall coordinate work with District’s Representative.  Contact information: 


District SSWD 
District Representative: 
Brian Lee 


SSWD Representative:  
Stephen F. Mack 


404 Aviation Boulevard PO Box 48 
Santa Rosa, CA 95403-9019 Guerneville, CA  95446 
Phone:  707-547-1918 Phone:  707-869-4000 
Email:  Brian.Lee@scwa.ca.gov Email:  smack@sweetwatersprings.com 


3. SSWD'S RESPONSIBILITIES 


A. CUWCC MOU:  Apply to join the CUWCC MOU and work to implement conservation 
programs consistent with CUWCC requirements for the duration of this Agreement.  SSWD 
shall apply to join the CUWCC MOU within fourteen (14) calendar days after the Effective 
Date of this Agreement. 


B. Water Conservation Program: Assist District as follows with administration of elements of 
SSWD’s water conservation program as described in SSWD Resolution 09-14: 
1) Direction: Provide District Representative with requested policy and other direction 


regarding high-efficiency fixture direct -installation program and other mutually-agreed 
upon water conservation program elements. This includes explicit direction to suspend 
program or authorize additional costs when notified by District that 80% of annual 
budget has been expended. 


2) Additional Costs:  If SSWD chooses to fund the program in excess of the $10,000 annual 
funding provided by District, SSWD will provide such funds to District prior to the 
funds being expended by District. 







 


 
First Amended Agreement for Funding of Sweetwater Springs Water District Water Conservation Program 3 


3) Annual Summary:  Assist District with District’s annual SRF reporting requirements as 
follows: At the end of each program year, SSWD shall send a written summary to 
District’s Representative to document how water conservation funds provided by 
District were used. 


C. Invoicing: Invoices submitted to District by SSWD shall be clearly marked with Agreement 
title, TW 10/11-034A, District’s account number 653105-7247, and District’s order number 
7493-2. 


D. Record Keeping:  SSWD will maintain complete and accurate records of all SSWD costs and 
transactions associated with performance of SSWD’s responsibilities under this Agreement 
in compliance with generally accepted accounting principles for enterprise accounting as 
promulgated by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board.  Such records will be available to District at all 
reasonable times for inspection and analysis. 


4. DISTRICT'S RESPONSIBILITIES 


A. CUWCC Dues:  Make payments in accordance with Paragraph 5A of this Agreement. 
B. Staffing:  Provide up to 15 days per year for 10 years of Water Programs Specialist labor 


including, but not limited to: 
1) CUWCC Best Management Practices (BMPs):  Assist SSWD in implementation of 


CUWCC BMPs, applying for BMP exemptions as required, and in submitting required 
reports to CUWCC on behalf of SSWD. 


2) UWMP:  Provide technical assistance with water conservation reporting requirements 
for SSWD Urban Water Management Plans for years 2010, 2015, and 2020. 


C. Funding and Administration of Water Conservation Program Elements:  District shall 
incorporate SSWD customers into District’s existing water conservation programs when 
mutually agreed upon, and fund SSWD’s participation in District’s water conservation 
program(s) as specified in Paragraph 5.B of the Agreement.  
1) Monthly Reports: District shall provide SSWD with monthly reports on balance 


remaining in each year’s water conservation budget. When 80% of the annual funds 
have been expended, District will notify SSWD in writing and will hold SSWD customer 
participation in District programs until District receives written authorization from 
SSWD to resume the program for that year. 


D. Record Keeping:  District will maintain complete and accurate records of all District costs 
and transactions associated with performance of District’s responsibilities under this 
Agreement in compliance with generally accepted accounting principles for enterprise 
accounting as promulgated by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.  Such records will be available to SSWD at 
all reasonable times for inspection and analysis. 


5. FUNDING 


A. CUWCC Dues: 
1) District shall reimburse SSWD for the cost of its membership dues to the CUWCC in the 


amount of up to $4,000 per year for 10 years starting in year 2010.  Reimbursement shall 
not exceed $40,000 over the 10-year term.  







 


 
First Amended Agreement for Funding of Sweetwater Springs Water District Water Conservation Program 4 


2) SSWD shall invoice District annually for reimbursement of CUWCC dues expenses 
incurred by SSWD. Upon receipt, review, and approval of invoice, District will pay 
SSWD for CUWCC dues expenses as authorized herein and itemized in said invoice(s). 


B. Water Conservation Program: 
1) In support of SSWD’s Water Conservation Program, District shall commit $10,000 per 


year for 5 years starting in calendar year 2010.  District funding shall not exceed $50,000 
over the 5-year period. 


2) Funds may be used by District to implement elements of SSWD’s water conservation 
program where mutually agreed upon and/or SSWD may invoice District for the funds 
to cover the cost of SSWD’s water conservation program.  Funds shall not be used for 
District staff costs. 


3) If the final monthly statement for any year shows a positive balance, District shall apply 
remaining funds to the following year’s balance. At the end of the fifth year, District 
shall refund any unused funds to SSWD.  Said unused funds may only be used by 
SSWD for water conservation activities. 


6. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS 


A. Authority to Amend Agreement:  Changes to the Agreement may be authorized only by 
written amendment to this Agreement, signed by both parties.  Notwithstanding this 
authority, neither District nor SSWD is under any obligation to approve such amendments.  


B. No Waiver of Breach:  The waiver by District of any breach of any term or promise 
contained in this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such term or promise or 
any subsequent breach of the same or any other term or promise contained in this 
Agreement. 


C. Construction:  To the fullest extent allowed by law, the provisions of this Agreement shall 
be construed and given effect in a manner that avoids any violation of statute, ordinance, 
regulation, or law.  The parties covenant and agree that in the event that any provision of 
this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or 
unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect 
and shall in no way be affected, impaired, or invalidated thereby.  
SSWD and District acknowledge that they have each contributed to the making of this 
Agreement and that, in the event of a dispute over the interpretation of this Agreement; the 
language of the Agreement will not be construed against one party in favor of the other.  
SSWD and District acknowledge that they have each had an adequate opportunity to 
consult with counsel in the negotiation and preparation of this Agreement. 


D. No Third-Party Beneficiaries:  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to 
create and the parties do not intend to create any rights in third parties. 


E. Applicable Law and Forum:  This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted according 
to the substantive law of California regardless of the law of conflicts to the contrary in any 
jurisdiction.  Any action to enforce the terms of this Agreement or for the breach thereof 
shall be brought and tried in the County of Sonoma. 


F. Captions:  The captions in this Agreement are solely for convenience of reference.  They are 
not a part of this Agreement and shall have no effect on its construction or interpretation. 


G. Merger:  This writing is intended both as the final expression of the Agreement between the 
parties hereto with respect to the included terms and as a complete and exclusive statement 
of the terms of the Agreement, pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure Section 1856.  No 







 


 
First Amended Agreement for Funding of Sweetwater Springs Water District Water Conservation Program 5 


modification of this Agreement shall be effective unless and until such modification is 
evidenced by a writing signed by both parties. 


H. Time of Essence:  Time is and shall be of the essence of this Agreement and every provision 
hereof. 


I. Changed Conditions: Should new statewide water conservation requirements be developed 
during the term of this Agreement, should CUWCC membership dues increase to more than 
$4,000 per year, or should CUWCC cease to lead statewide water conservation policy, 
District and SSWD will negotiate in good faith to amend this Agreement to meet the new 
requirements. 


7. MUTUAL INDEMNIFICATION 


A. Each party shall defend, indemnify, hold harmless, and release the other, its officers, agents, 
and employees, from and against any and all actions, claims, damages, liabilities, or 
expenses that may be asserted by any person or entity, including the parties, arising out of 
or in connection with the negligent performance or willful misconduct of the indemnifying 
party arising out of or in connection with this Agreement; provided, however, that a party 
shall not be entitled to indemnification under this section for any actions, claims, damages, 
liabilities, or expenses arising out of that party’s gross negligence or willful misconduct.  
This indemnification obligation is not limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or 
type of damages or compensation payable to or for SSWD or its agents under workers’ 
compensation acts, disability benefits acts, or other employee benefit acts. 


8. TERM OF AGREEMENT 


A. This Agreement shall expire ten (10) years after the Effective Date, unless terminated earlier 
in accordance with the provisions of Article 9. 


9. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 


A. This Agreement, as amended, may be terminated by either party for any reason upon ninety 
(90) calendar days’ written notice by either party.  District’s right to terminate may be 
exercised by District’s General Manager. 


B. Notwithstanding Paragraph 9.A above, the District may terminate this Agreement upon 
three (3) calendar days’ notice if the State Water Resources Control Board  revokes the 
District’s SRF loan. 


C. Termination for Cause:  If either party fails to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement, 
the other party shall provide written notice of the alleged breach of the Agreement.  If a 
breach has occurred and such breach is not corrected or otherwise resolved with thirty (30) 
calendar days after receipt of the written notice, the non-breaching party may terminate this 
Agreement. 


D. If termination is effected pursuant to this Article 9, neither party shall be required to 
continue to meet the obligations set forth in this Agreement.  


/ 


/ 







 


 
First Amended Agreement for Funding of Sweetwater Springs Water District Water Conservation Program 6 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as set forth below. 


Reviewed as to substance:  
 
  


 


Agency’s Department Head  
  
Reviewed as to funds by District:  
 
  


 


Division Manager - Administrative Services  
  
  
Reviewed as to form:  
 
  


 


County Counsel  
 Sweetwater Springs Water District 
  
 By:   


Stephen F. Mack, General Manager 
  
 Date:   
  
  
  
  
 Russian River County Sanitation District 
  
 By:   
Attest: Chair, Board of Directors 
   
Clerk of the Board of Directors Date:   
 







 


 
First Amended Agreement for Funding of Sweetwater Springs Water District Water Conservation Program 7 


 
 


Exhibit A 
 


Five-Year Water Conservation Program Budget 
 
 
Contract 


Year 
Dates Amount District Funds Source Reimbursement as 


of 04/01/2012 


Year 1  Nov.2 - Dec. 31, 2010  $10K  FY2010/11 budget $10K 


Year 2  Jan 1 – Dec 31, 2011  $10K  FY2011/12 budget 0 


Year 3  Jan 1 – Dec 31, 2012  $10K  FY2012/13 budget 0 


Year 4 Jan 1 – Dec 31, 2013  $10K  FY2013/14 budget 0 


Year 5 Jan 1 – Dec 31, 2014  $10K  FY2014/15 budget 0 
 





		Item V-B Approval of Resolution 12-07 Amending SCWA Agmt

		Meeting Date : April 5, 2012 



		Item V-B.1 - Resolution 12-07 SCWA Amended Agreement

		Item V-B.2 SCWA Amended Agmt 03202012

		1. RECITALS

		A. The above recitals are true and correct.



		2. COORDINATION

		A. SSWD shall coordinate work with District’s Representative.  Contact information:



		3. SSWD'S RESPONSIBILITIES

		A. CUWCC MOU:  Apply to join the CUWCC MOU and work to implement conservation programs consistent with CUWCC requirements for the duration of this Agreement.  SSWD shall apply to join the CUWCC MOU within fourteen (14) calendar days after the Effective Date of this Agreement.

		B. Water Conservation Program: Assist District as follows with administration of elements of SSWD’s water conservation program as described in SSWD Resolution 09-14:

		1) Direction: Provide District Representative with requested policy and other direction regarding high-efficiency fixture direct -installation program and other mutually-agreed upon water conservation program elements. This includes explicit direction to suspend program or authorize additional costs when notified by District that 80% of annual budget has been expended.

		2) Additional Costs:  If SSWD chooses to fund the program in excess of the $10,000 annual funding provided by District, SSWD will provide such funds to District prior to the funds being expended by District.

		3) Annual Summary:  Assist District with District’s annual SRF reporting requirements as follows: At the end of each program year, SSWD shall send a written summary to District’s Representative to document how water conservation funds provided by District were used.



		C. Invoicing: Invoices submitted to District by SSWD shall be clearly marked with Agreement title, TW 10/11-034A, District’s account number 653105-7247, and District’s order number 7493-2.

		D. Record Keeping:  SSWD will maintain complete and accurate records of all SSWD costs and transactions associated with performance of SSWD’s responsibilities under this Agreement in compliance with generally accepted accounting principles for enterprise accounting as promulgated by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.  Such records will be available to District at all reasonable times for inspection and analysis.



		4. DISTRICT'S RESPONSIBILITIES

		A. CUWCC Dues:  Make payments in accordance with Paragraph 5A of this Agreement.

		B. Staffing:  Provide up to 15 days per year for 10 years of Water Programs Specialist labor including, but not limited to:

		1) CUWCC Best Management Practices (BMPs):  Assist SSWD in implementation of CUWCC BMPs, applying for BMP exemptions as required, and in submitting required reports to CUWCC on behalf of SSWD.

		2) UWMP:  Provide technical assistance with water conservation reporting requirements for SSWD Urban Water Management Plans for years 2010, 2015, and 2020.



		C. Funding and Administration of Water Conservation Program Elements:  District shall incorporate SSWD customers into District’s existing water conservation programs when mutually agreed upon, and fund SSWD’s participation in District’s water conservation program(s) as specified in Paragraph 5.B of the Agreement. 

		1) Monthly Reports: District shall provide SSWD with monthly reports on balance remaining in each year’s water conservation budget. When 80% of the annual funds have been expended, District will notify SSWD in writing and will hold SSWD customer participation in District programs until District receives written authorization from SSWD to resume the program for that year.



		D. Record Keeping:  District will maintain complete and accurate records of all District costs and transactions associated with performance of District’s responsibilities under this Agreement in compliance with generally accepted accounting principles for enterprise accounting as promulgated by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.  Such records will be available to SSWD at all reasonable times for inspection and analysis.



		5. FUNDING

		A. CUWCC Dues:

		1) District shall reimburse SSWD for the cost of its membership dues to the CUWCC in the amount of up to $4,000 per year for 10 years starting in year 2010.  Reimbursement shall not exceed $40,000 over the 10-year term. 

		2) SSWD shall invoice District annually for reimbursement of CUWCC dues expenses incurred by SSWD. Upon receipt, review, and approval of invoice, District will pay SSWD for CUWCC dues expenses as authorized herein and itemized in said invoice(s).



		B. Water Conservation Program:

		1) In support of SSWD’s Water Conservation Program, District shall commit $10,000 per year for 5 years starting in calendar year 2010.  District funding shall not exceed $50,000 over the 5-year period.

		2) Funds may be used by District to implement elements of SSWD’s water conservation program where mutually agreed upon and/or SSWD may invoice District for the funds to cover the cost of SSWD’s water conservation program.  Funds shall not be used for District staff costs.

		3) If the final monthly statement for any year shows a positive balance, District shall apply remaining funds to the following year’s balance. At the end of the fifth year, District shall refund any unused funds to SSWD.  Said unused funds may only be used by SSWD for water conservation activities.





		6. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS

		A. Authority to Amend Agreement:  Changes to the Agreement may be authorized only by written amendment to this Agreement, signed by both parties.  Notwithstanding this authority, neither District nor SSWD is under any obligation to approve such amendments. 

		B. No Waiver of Breach:  The waiver by District of any breach of any term or promise contained in this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such term or promise or any subsequent breach of the same or any other term or promise contained in this Agreement.

		C. Construction:  To the fullest extent allowed by law, the provisions of this Agreement shall be construed and given effect in a manner that avoids any violation of statute, ordinance, regulation, or law.  The parties covenant and agree that in the event that any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired, or invalidated thereby. 

		D. No Third-Party Beneficiaries:  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to create and the parties do not intend to create any rights in third parties.

		E. Applicable Law and Forum:  This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted according to the substantive law of California regardless of the law of conflicts to the contrary in any jurisdiction.  Any action to enforce the terms of this Agreement or for the breach thereof shall be brought and tried in the County of Sonoma.

		F. Captions:  The captions in this Agreement are solely for convenience of reference.  They are not a part of this Agreement and shall have no effect on its construction or interpretation.

		G. Merger:  This writing is intended both as the final expression of the Agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the included terms and as a complete and exclusive statement of the terms of the Agreement, pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure Section 1856.  No modification of this Agreement shall be effective unless and until such modification is evidenced by a writing signed by both parties.

		H. Time of Essence:  Time is and shall be of the essence of this Agreement and every provision hereof.

		I. Changed Conditions: Should new statewide water conservation requirements be developed during the term of this Agreement, should CUWCC membership dues increase to more than $4,000 per year, or should CUWCC cease to lead statewide water conservation policy, District and SSWD will negotiate in good faith to amend this Agreement to meet the new requirements.



		7. MUTUAL INDEMNIFICATION

		A. Each party shall defend, indemnify, hold harmless, and release the other, its officers, agents, and employees, from and against any and all actions, claims, damages, liabilities, or expenses that may be asserted by any person or entity, including the parties, arising out of or in connection with the negligent performance or willful misconduct of the indemnifying party arising out of or in connection with this Agreement; provided, however, that a party shall not be entitled to indemnification under this section for any actions, claims, damages, liabilities, or expenses arising out of that party’s gross negligence or willful misconduct.  This indemnification obligation is not limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages or compensation payable to or for SSWD or its agents under workers’ compensation acts, disability benefits acts, or other employee benefit acts.



		8. TERM OF AGREEMENT

		A. This Agreement shall expire ten (10) years after the Effective Date, unless terminated earlier in accordance with the provisions of Article 9.



		9. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

		A. This Agreement, as amended, may be terminated by either party for any reason upon ninety (90) calendar days’ written notice by either party.  District’s right to terminate may be exercised by District’s General Manager.

		B. Notwithstanding Paragraph 9.A above, the District may terminate this Agreement upon three (3) calendar days’ notice if the State Water Resources Control Board  revokes the District’s SRF loan.

		C. Termination for Cause:  If either party fails to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement, the other party shall provide written notice of the alleged breach of the Agreement.  If a breach has occurred and such breach is not corrected or otherwise resolved with thirty (30) calendar days after receipt of the written notice, the non-breaching party may terminate this Agreement.

		D. If termination is effected pursuant to this Article 9, neither party shall be required to continue to meet the obligations set forth in this Agreement. 










SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: April 5, 2012  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE CRYSTAL COMMUNICATIONS LEASE 
FOR DISTRICT MOUNT JACKSON PROPERTY 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive an update from the General Manager on the 
resolution of nonpayment issues with Crystal Communications lease for District Mount 
Jackson property.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
District staff had a show and tell with the proposed radios on March 15.  We are 
working with Crystal on doing a demonstration with a sample of the equipment.  
Crystal has been making their monthly payments.     





		Meeting Date: April 5, 2012 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: April 5, 2012  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE RIO VISTA TERRACE SADDLE 
FAILURES  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a report on progress resolving the Rio Vista 
Terrace service connection saddle failures.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
No saddles have failed in March (as of March 30).  We have received no direct 
communication from the contractor, W.R. Forde, and have sent a letter to Forde 
that we will be communicating directly with others involved.   This item will be 
discussed more fully in closed session.     
 





		Meeting Date: April 5, 2012 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: April 5, 2012  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE DISTRICT CELL PHONE POLICY 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Discuss and give direction on a District cell phone 
policy.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  small.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Cell phones are an important part of the District’s communications.  Currently, 
the District pays for cell phones for the General Manager, the Field and 
Administrative Managers, and the two field supervisors, plus one cell phone for 
the on-call person.  It is important that all these people have communication 
ability with the District.   These are basic cell phones that fit the District’s 
communication needs.   The phones have photo-taking capabilities and this has 
been used for business-related purposes.  These phones are available for 
personal use – there is no extra charge for personal phone calls.   The District’s 
plan does not pay for texting; we don’t see a business need for that at this time.   
 
Cell phone technology changes all the time (at the higher end).  Some staff may 
want to have “smarter” phones than what we provide and probably don’t want 
to carry two phones around.  Some staff use texting for personal use and that’s 
an extra charge on our plan.  One person has asked to have a cell phone 
allowance in lieu of being provided a cell phone, so that he can have a smarter 
phone of his own choosing and not have to carry two phones.   This is a 
reasonable request.   
 
We have no adopted policies on cell phone use.  It’s time to do that but also we 
must recognize that the role of cell phones will change with time – I expect them 
to become more functional and that later employees – perhaps my replacement 
– will want a different role for cell phones than the current one.  Many people 
out there use the smarter cell phones for keeping up with emails, calendar 
maintenance, and other business-related Internet use.   
 
My inclination is to allow for an allowance for staff who want to get a different 
cell phone from what the District provides and to have staff reimburse the 
District for texting use.  I welcome Board Members discussion, thoughts, ideas, 
and direction on this item.   





		Meeting Date: April 5, 2012 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: April 5, 2012  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets 
all known State and Federal water quality standards.   


 
2. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in February were 16,641 units 


(28.9 AF, Monte Rio cycle) and production was 48.3 AF.  Compared to one 
year ago, sales this February was more and production was less (28.4 AF 
and 48.6 AF, respectively).   The difference between sales and production 
was fairly steady this month, still approximately 27%.   Figure 1 shows the 
12 month moving average since September 2006, data are available back to 
May 2001.   


 
3. Leaks:  In February we had 10 total leaks and spent 36 man-hours on them.   


Those are the same amounts in leaks and man-hours compared to the prior 
month and fewer compared to February one year ago (11 leaks, 48 man-
hours).  Figure 2 is continued showing service and main leaks separately 
with a total breaks line as well.   The annual average is approaching the 250 
per year mark – going below that permanently would be nice but our target 
is much lower – I’m thinking 50 per year would be typical for a water utility 
of our size.        


 
4. Guerneville Rainfall Chart:   Figure 3 is the cumulative annual Guerneville 


rainfall starting in October.  March has been above average, but we are still 
way below average for the year.  We are above the 2008-2009 cumulative 
curve – a drought year. The real key for summer flows is storage in Lake 
Mendocino, but the Russian River instream flows index is based on Lake 
Pillsbury.  The March 1 level there was such that a critical year was 
declared; stay tuned to see if that changes.         


 
5. Toilet Rebate Program:  There were 2 toilet rebates issued in March.  A 


total of 81 rebates have been approved.  The Direct Install Program can 







General Manager’s Report  2 of 4 
April 5, 2012 


start once the revised agreement with SCWA is approved by both parties – it 
is on our agenda for this meeting.   


 
6. In-House Construction Projects:  There were 3 in-house projects 


reported for March requiring 59.5 man-hours.  The projects were a service 
relocation, installation of 2 valves and a flushout on Foothill, and fixing a 
leak at the Hidden Valley Tank.    


 
7. Past and Upcoming Events:  I attended the ribbon cutting ceremony for 


the UV system at the Russian River County Sanitation District Treatment 
Plant on March 24 (our joining CUWCC allowed a low-interest loan for this 
project and we were recognized for that at the ceremony); I attended a 2-
day workshop on Adaptation Strategies and Information Needs in Response 
to Extreme Events in Santa Rosa on March 13-14 – the most interesting part 
was the information from NOAA; and I am attending a portion of the CA-NV 
AWWA conference in Santa Clara on April 3-4 – I will report on this at the 
meeting.           


 
8. Gantt Chart:   April in the Gantt Chart shows that the design of the FY 2013 


CIP being completed in March – currently we are that to happen in mid April.  
The draft Budget was presented to the Board a second time at this meeting.              


 
 
 


Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Averages
Sweetwater Springs Water District Since September 2006 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


Sep-06 Mar-07 Sep-07 Mar-08 Sep-08 Mar-09 Sep-09 Mar-10 Sep-10 Mar-11 Sep-11


Sa
le


s 
an


d 
Pr


od
uc


tio
n 


(A
F)


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


35.0%


D
iff


er
en


ce
 (%


)


Sales
Production
%Difference


 
 


 







General Manager’s Report  3 of 4 
April 5, 2012 


 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline Breaks 
Moving Annual Average Since September 2006


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-
06


Dec-
06


Mar-
07


Jun-
07


Sep-
07


Dec-
07


Mar-
08


Jun-
08


Sep-
08


Dec-
08


Mar-
09


Jun-
09


Sep-
09


Dec-
09


Mar-
10


Jun-
10


Sep-
10


Dec-
10


Mar-
11


Jun-
11


Sep-
11


Dec-
11


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks
Service Breaks
Total Leaks


Figure 3.  Guerneville Cumulative Monthly Rainfall


0


10


20


30


40


50


60


70


Octo
be


r


Nov
em


be
r


Dec
em


be
r


Ja
nu


ary


Feb
rua


ry
Marc


h
Apri


l
May


Ju
ne Ju


ly


Aug
us


t


Sep
tem


be
r


Pr
ec


ip
ita


tio
n


 (i
n)


GV 2009
Guerneville Avg
GV 2011
2012


-







Jan-11 Feb-11 Mar-11 Apr-11 May-11 Jun-11 Jul-11 Aug-11 Sep-11 Oct-11 Nov-11 Dec-11 Jan-12 Feb-12 Mar-12 Apr-12 May-12 Jun-12 Jul-12 2012
Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease Completed
2011-12 Budget Preparation


•        Capital Improvement Program Board 
Discussion 


December-11


•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews Draft 
Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action April-11


•        Approve Budget May-11
2012-13 Budget Preparation


•        Capital Improvement Program Board 
Discussion 
•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews Draft 
Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action


•        Approve Budget
Capital Projects


•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 1 Construction 
Starts


April-10


•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 1 Construction 
Completed


October-10


•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 2 Construction 
St t•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 2 Construction 
Completed
•        2012 CIP Construction Award of Contract


•        2012 CIP Construction Starts


•        2012 CIP Construction Complete


•        Update/Review District CIP


•        2013 CIP Design


2010 Urban Water Management Plan July-11 Public Hearing
Water Rights SCWA Protest SCWA Response
Building Lease


•        Lease Ends July-11
Policies and Procedures


•        Other Policy
•        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Goals and Objectives


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 





		Meeting Date: April 5, 2012 



